

Republic of the Philippines
SANGGUNIANG PANLUNGSOD
CITY OF SURIGAO

MINUTES OF THE 29TH REGULAR SESSION OF THE SANGGUNIANG PANLUNGSOD OF THE
CITY OF SURIGAO HELD AT THE SP SESSION HALL ON JULY 25, 2024.

PRESENT:

Hon. Alfonso S. Casurra	- City Vice Mayor (Presiding Officer)
Hon. Cacel R. Azarcon	- City Councilor
Hon. Joenil B. Aldonza	- City Councilor
Hon. Joel E. Tinio	- City Councilor
Hon. Joshua Emilio S. Geli	- City Councilor
Hon. Baltazar C. Abian	- City Councilor
Hon. Noel Christian G. Catre, Jr.	- City Councilor
Hon. Jose Expeditus B. Bayana	- City Councilor
Hon. Joseph Joey S. Yuipco	- City Councilor
Hon. Karl Duane A. Casurra	- City Councilor
Hon. Florenillo B. Ravelo	- Liga ng mga Barangay President
Hon. Jenelyn Edulzura	- SK Federation President

ABSENT:

Hon. Sebastian Ric. A. Nagas	- City Councilor (OL)
------------------------------	-----------------------

The session was called to order at 2:00 o'clock in the afternoon of July 25, 2024.

OPENING PRAYER

HON. JOSEPH JOEY S. YUIPCO:

In the name of the Father, and of the Son,
and of the Holy Spirit. Amen.

Dear Heavenly Father, as we gather here today, we thank You
For the opportunity to come together. Guide our hearts and minds
As we discuss matters of importance. May this meeting be
Productive, filled with respect for one another and aligned with
The greater good. Bless each person present and those we represent.

In the name of the Father, and of the Son,
and of the Holy Spirit. Amen.

SINGING OF THE PHILIPPINE NATIONAL ANTHEM

ROLL CALL

The roll call was conducted with all the members of the Sangguniang Panlungsod listed herein as present in attendance, and thereafter a **QUORUM** was declared.

PERUSAL AND APPROVAL OF THE
PREVIOUS MINUTES

Before the approval of the Minutes, Sanggunian Secretary, Ms. Edna B. Siega read the resolutions that were passed and approved in the previous regular session.

Thereafter, Honorable Joel E. Tinio was recognized and presented a motion for the approval of the Minutes of the previous regular session, seconded by Honorable Karl Duane A. Casurra, it was unanimously

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the Regular Session held on July 18, 2024, re: Resolution Nos. 165-168 be as it is hereby approved.

MATTERS OF INFORMATION

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Yes, we received a letter from City Councilor Sebastian Ric A. Nagas, informing this honorable august body that he is traveling abroad to Bangkok, Thailand from July 31, 2024 to August 4, 2024. The authority to travel outside the Philippines has having been approved by the Hon. City Mayor and leave likewise having been approved and then he is being cleared any accountabilities. This letter serves as a compliance to the leave of absence to Hon. Sebastian Ric A. Nagas to travel abroad. Any other...

We have also received also an invitation from the Provincial Governor of the Province of Surigao del Norte inviting the members of this council to attend the State of the Provincial Address on July 29, 2024 at 1:00 o'clock in the afternoon at the Provincial Gym of this city.

INCLUSION, AMENDMENT AND
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

On motion of Honorable Joel E. Tinio, jointly seconded by Honorable Joseph Joey S. Yuipco and Honorable Karl Duane A. Casurra, it was unanimously

RESOLVED, to approve, as it is hereby approved, the agenda of the 29th Regular Session of the Sangguniang Panlungsod dated 25 July 2024 as prepared and presented.

FIRST READING:

- None

REFERRAL TO COMMITTEES:

A. Committee on Transportation, Communication and Utilities —

- Indorsement from the City Mayor, forwarding the letter of Mr. Bonifacio R. Arances, Chairman of Maharlika Transport Service Cooperative, seeking a letter of support from the LGU of Surigao, regarding access to and use of off-street loading and unloading areas outlined in their route map.

B. Committee on Social Welfare and Committee on Youth and Sports Development —

- Indorsement from the City Mayor, forwarding to the City Council Resolution No. 001- 2024 of the Local Council for the Protection of Children (LCPC), endorsing the Comprehensive Juvenile Intervention Program of Surigao City for 2023-2025, for adoption and approval.

C. Committee on Rules —

- Letter from Ma. Theresa H. Trinidad, OIC City Planning and Development Office, forwarding the application of Diamond Transport Service Cooperative (DATSCO) for accreditation with the City Government Surigao as Civil Society Organization.
- Indorsement from the City Mayor, denominated as URGENT requesting the City Council to pass a resolution expressing support for the implementation of the PalengQR Ph Plus Program by the Bangko Sentral ng Philippines (BSP) and the Department of the Interior and Local Government (DILG) with the attached Local Finance Committee Resolution No. 19, Series of 2024.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Honorable Azarcon was recognized.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

First, Mr. Chairman, is the application of Senior Citizen Welfare Association of the Philippines, Inc. (SCWAP) for accreditation as civil society organization of the City Government of Surigao. We conducted a committee hearing last July 14, we have found out the said civil society organization have satisfactorily complied with all the documentary requirements for application for accreditation and upon preliminary review of the City Planning and Development Office, the said civil society organization may be granted accreditation by the City Government of Surigao.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Committee on Rules hereby recommends for the passage of a Resolution granting accreditation to the Senior Citizen Welfare Association of the Philippines, Inc. (SCWAP) as civil society organization of the City Government of Surigao.

May I therefore move for the adoption of our committee report, Mr. Chairman.

The motion to adopt the committee report was approved. Thereafter, a motion was presented and approved, to wit:

171

RESOLUTION NO. 171 – 2024

A RESOLUTION GRANTING ACCREDITATION TO THE SENIOR CITIZEN WELFARE ASSOCIATION OF THE PHILIPPINES, INC. (SCWAP) AS A CIVIL SOCIETY ORGANIZATION OF THE CITY GOVERNMENT OF SURIGAO.

WHEREAS, the Sangguniang Panglungsod was in receipt of a letter from Ma. Theresa H. Trinidad, OIC, City Planning and Development Office, forwarding the application of Senior Citizens Welfare Association of the Philippines, Inc. (SCWAP) for accreditation with the City Government of Surigao as Civil Society Organization, for favorable action and approval;

WHEREAS, upon preliminary review by the City Planning and Development Office, it has been found that the Senior Citizen Welfare Association of the Philippines, Inc. (SCWAP) has satisfactorily complied with all the documentary requirements for application for accreditation;

NOW THEREFORE, on motion of Honorable Cacer R. Azarcon, seconded by Honorable Karl Duane A. Casurra, it was unanimously

RESOLVED: To pass a resolution granting accreditation to the Senior Citizen Welfare Association of the Philippines, Inc. (SCWAP) as a civil society organization of the City Government of Surigao.

RESOLVED FURTHER: That copies of this resolution be furnished the Honorable City Mayor, City Planning and Development Office, and Senior Citizen Welfare Association of the Philippines, Inc. (SCWAP), for their information.

Honorable Azarcon continued.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, the next report is the indorsement from the City Mayor requesting the City Council to pass an ordinance creating the City Information Technology Office, and Providing for its Tasks, Functions, Personnel and Appropriation Thereof and for Other Purposes.

FINDINGS/ACTION TAKEN:

During the Committee Hearing held on July 19, 2024, Atty. Cristina R. Pariñas, the City Administrator manifested that the proposed ordinance be remanded back to the City Legal Office for refinement and revision.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Committee on Rules recommended as hereby recommends that the said proposed ordinance be remanded back to the City Legal Office. May I move for the adoption of our committee report.

The motion to adopt the committee report was approved. The Secretary was directed to take note of the recommendation to remand the proposed ordinance.

— — — — —

Honorable Azarcon continued.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

This is another indorsement from the City Mayor requesting the City Council to pass an ordinance, An Ordinance Creating the Property Management Office under the Office of the City Mayor, Providing Its Duties and Responsibilities, Appropriating Funds Thereof and for Other Purposes.

The same recommendation, Mr. Chairman, as requested by Atty. Cristina R. Pariñas, the Committee on Rules, as requested, that the proposed ordinance be remanded back to the City Legal Office. May I move for the adoption of our committee report, Mr. Chairman.

The motion to adopt the committee report was approved. The Secretary was directed to remand the proposed ordinance, immediately.

.....

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Next, Mr. Chairman, is another Indorsement from the City Mayor requesting the City Council to pass an ordinance, An Ordinance Creating the Tricycle-For-Hire and Trisikad Franchising Office under the Office of the City Mayor, amending for that purpose Sections 2 and 3 of Ordinance No. 294 Series of 2009.

FINDINGS/ACTION TAKEN:

During the Committee Hearing held on July 19, 2024, Atty. Cristina R. Pariñas, the City Administrator manifested that the proposed ordinance should have been properly denominated as an Amendatory Ordinance and not as a new original ordinance. Hence, she intimated that the said proposed ordinance be remanded back to the City Legal Office for further study and refinement.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Committee on Rules recommends as requested by the City Administrator to remand the said proposed ordinance to the City Legal Office.

May I move for the adoption of our committee report, Mr. Chairman.

The motion to adopt the committee report was approved. The Secretary was directed to remand the proposed ordinance, immediately.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Next, Mr. Chairman, is an indorsement from the City Mayor requesting the City Council to pass a resolution reclassifying/correcting the Salary Grade and/or Positions of Nurse I, II, and IV in accordance with Department of Budget and Management Circular No. 2021-2 dated 25 August 2021.

FINDINGS/ACTION TAKEN:

During the Committee Hearing held on July 19, 2024, it was found out, among others, that:

1. The Department of Budget and Management issued Budget Circular No. 2024-4 to upgrade the Nurse I position from SG11 to SG15 pursuant to Section 32 of Republic Act No. 9173 or the Philippine Nursing Act of 2002;

2. The Sangguniang Panlungsod of the City of Surigao passed Resolution No. 258-2020 dated August 25, 2020 approving the implementation of DBM Budget Circular No. 2020-4 which resulted in the upgrading of the salary grades of Nurse I to IV positions of the City Health Office;

3. Pursuant to the memorandum issued by the Office of the President dated June 1, 2021, the Department of Management issued Budget Circular No. 2021-2 dated August 25, 2021 superseding Budget Circular No. 2020-4 and providing for the new guidelines for the modification of Nurse positions, as stated and enumerated hereunder:

4. Item 7.4.2 of Budget Circular No. 2021-2 also states that the upgrading of the former Nurse II position as well as the modification in position attributes to the other Nurse positions are not within the purview of section 325 (f) of RA 7160 which provides that: "No changes in designation or nomenclature of positions resulting in a promotion or demotion in rank or increase or decrease in compensation shall be allowed, except when the position is actually vacant".

5. There is a need to pass a Resolution in conformity with the new DBM Circular.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Committee on Rules hereby recommends for the passage of a resolution rendering ineffective Resolution No. 258-2020 and approving the implementation of DBM Budget Circular No. 2021-2 dated August 25, 2021 to modify the salary grades of Nurse II to IV positions of the City Health Office in conformity with the guidelines of the said Circular.

I therefore move for the adoption of our committee report, Mr. Chairman.

The motion to adopt the committee report was approved. Thereafter, a motion was presented and approved, to wit:

172

RESOLUTION NO. 172 – 2024

A RESOLUTION RENDERING INEFFECTIVE RESOLUTION NO. 258-2020 AND APPROVING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF DBM BUDGET CIRCULAR NO. 2021-2 DATED AUGUST 25, 2021 TO MODIFY THE SALARY GRADES OF NURSE II TO IV POSITIONS OF THE CITY HEALTH OFFICE IN CONFORMITY WITH THE GUIDELINES OF THE SAID CIRCULAR.

WHEREAS, the Sangguniang Panglungsod was in receipt indorsement from the City Mayor, requesting the City Council to pass a resolution reclassifying/correcting the Salary Grade and/or Positions of Nurse I, II, III, and IV in accordance with Department of Budget and Management Circular No. 2021-2 dated 25 August 2021, for favorable action and approval;

WHEREAS, the Department of Budget and Management issued Budget Circular No. 2024-4 to upgrade the Nurse I position from SG11 to SG15 pursuant to Section 32 of Republic Act No. 9173 or the Philippine Nursing Act of 2002;

WHEREAS, the Sangguniang Panlungsod of the City of Surigao passed Resolution No. 258-2020 dated August 25, 2020, approving the implementation of DBM Budget Circular No. 2020-4, which resulted in the upgrading of the salary grades of Nurse I to IV positions of the City Health Office;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the memorandum issued by the Office of the President dated June 1, 2021, the Department of Budget and Management issued Budget Circular No. 2021-2 dated August 25, 2021, superseding Budget Circular No. 2020-4 and providing for the new guidelines for the modification of Nurse positions;

WHEREAS, Item 7.4.2 of Budget Circular No. 2021-2 states that the upgrading of the former Nurse II position, as well as the modification in position attributes to the other Nurse positions, are not within the purview of Section 325 (f) of RA 7160, which provides that "No changes in designation or nomenclature of positions resulting in a promotion or demotion in rank or increase or decrease in compensation shall be allowed, except when the position is actually vacant";

WHEREAS, there is a need to pass a Resolution in conformity with the new DBM Circular;

NOW THEREFORE, on motion of Honorable Cacer R. Azarcon, seconded by Honorable Joseph Joey S. Yuipco, it was unanimously

RESOLVED: To pass a resolution rendering ineffective Resolution No. 258-2020 and approving the implementation of DBM Budget Circular No. 2021-2 dated August 25, 2021 to modify the Salary Grades of Nurse II to IV Positions of the City Health Office in conformity with the guidelines of the said circular.

RESOLVED FURTHER: That copies of this resolution be furnished the Honorable City Mayor, City Health Office, City Human Resource and Management Office, and City Accounting Office, for their information.

Honorable Azarcon continued.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Next, Mr. Chairman.

COMMITTEE REPORT

SUBJECT:

Indorsement from the City Mayor, forwarding Barangay Ordinance No. 02 Series of 2024 of Barangay Sabang, this City, "Entitled an Ordinance Regulating Operation Hours of Disco Bars, Karaoke Houses, and Other Entertainment Establishments Within the Territorial Jurisdiction of Barangay Sabang to Minimize Noise Disturbances.

FINDINGS/ACTION TAKEN:

During the Committee Hearing on June 19, 2024, the barangay officials of Barangay Sabang manifested to withdraw the said Barangay Ordinance and of course upon my recommendation Mr. Chairman to give them time and to consult and refer the same to the City Legal Office for the refinement of their Ordinance.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Committee on Rules hereby recommends that the said Barangay Ordinance be referred, not remand, referred to the barangay, remanded back to the barangay in said barangay, Council of Barangay Sabang and referred to the City Legal Office for legal assistance.

I so move Mr. Chairman. I move for the adoption of the committee report.

The motion to adopt the committee report was approved. Thereafter, a motion was presented and approved, to wit:

173

RESOLUTION NO. 173 – 2024

A RESOLUTION REMANDING BARANGAY ORDINANCE NO. 02, SERIES OF 2024 TO THE BARANGAY COUNCIL OF BARANGAY SABANG AND/OR THE CITY LEGAL OFFICE FOR REFINEMENT.

WHEREAS, the Sangguniang Panglungsod was in receipt indorsement from the City Mayor, forwarding Brgy. Ordinance No. 02 Series of 2024 of Brgy. Sabang, this city, entitled, An Ordinance Regulating Operation Hours of Disco Bars, Karaoke Houses, and Other Entertainment Establishments Within the Territorial Jurisdiction of Barangay Sabang to Minimize Noise Disturbance, for favorable action and approval;

WHEREAS, during the Committee Hearing held on July 19, 2024, the Barangay Officials of Barangay Sabang manifested to withdraw the said barangay ordinance to give them time to consult and refer the same to the City Legal Office for refinement;

NOW THEREFORE, on motion of Honorable Cacer R. Azarcon, seconded by Honorable Joseph Joey S. Yuipco, it was unanimously

RESOLVED: To pass a resolution remanding Barangay Ordinance No. 02, Series of 2024 to the Barangay Council of Barangay Sabang and/or the City Legal Office for refinement.

RESOLVED FURTHER: That copies of this resolution be furnished the Honorable City Mayor, City Legal Office, and Barangay Council of Barangay Sabang, for their information.

Honorable Azarcon continued.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Next, Mr. Chairman.

COMMITTEE REPORT

SUBJECT:

The legal opinion of the City Legal Officer relative to the Atty. Lex Silvosa relative to the Request to Repurchase Lot No. 889-B which is now covered by Tax Declaration No. K-0253895 by the heirs of Felix Farolan and Laureana Narciso represented by Atty. Carlo Reynaldo F. Lozada Jr.

FINDINGS/ACTION TAKEN:

During the Committee Report held on July 24, 2024, the City Legal Officer issued an opinion that it is the Sangguniang Panlungsod which has the authority, through an Ordinance duly approved,

to allow the resale of the subject real property. In view of the said opinion, Atty. Carlo Reynaldo F. Lozada Jr. suggested that the matter be referred to the Local Finance Committee of the City Government of Surigao for its recommendation.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Committee on Rules hereby refers the matter to the Local Finance Committee for evaluation and recommendation.

May I move for the adoption of our Committee Report, Mr. Chairman.

The motion to adopt the committee report was approved. Thereafter, a motion was presented and approved, to wit:

174

RESOLUTION NO. 174 – 2024

A RESOLUTION REFERRING THE REQUEST TO REPURCHASE LOT NO. 889-B (NOW COVERED BY TAX DECLARATION NO. K-0253895) BY THE HEIRS OF FELIX FAROLAN AND LAUREANA NARCISO, REPRESENTED BY ATTY. CARLO REYNALDO F. LOZADA JR., TO THE LOCAL FINANCE COMMITTEE FOR EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION.

WHEREAS, the Sangguniang Panglungsod was in receipt of a letter from the City Legal Officer, Atty. Lex Joshua Andrew U. Silvosa, the herein Legal Opinion on the Request to Repurchase of Lot 889-B (now covered by Tax Declaration No.K-0253895) by the Heirs of Felix Farolan & Laureana Narciso represented by Atty. Carlo Reynaldo F. Lozada, for favorable action and approval;

WHEREAS, during the Committee Hearing held on July 24, 2024, the City Legal Officer issued an opinion that it is the Sangguniang Panlungsod who has the authority, through an ordinance duly approved, to allow the resale of the subject real property;

WHEREAS, in view of the said opinion, Atty. Carlo Reynaldo F. Lozada Jr. suggested that the matter be referred to the Local Finance Committee of the City Government of Surigao for its recommendation;

NOW THEREFORE, on motion of Honorable Cacer R. Azarcon, seconded by Honorable Joseph Joey S. Yuipco, it was unanimously;

RESOLVED: To pass a resolution referring the request to Repurchase Lot No. 889-B (Now Covered by Tax Declaration No. K-0253895) by the Heirs of Felix Farolan and Laureana Narciso, represented by Atty. Carlo Reynaldo F. Lozada Jr., to the Local Finance Committee for evaluation and recommendation.

RESOLVED FURTHER: That copies of this resolution be furnished the Honorable City Mayor, Local Finance Committee, and Atty. Carlo Reynaldo F. Lozada Jr, for their information.

Honorable Azarcon continued.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

502
503 *Next Mr. Chairman is another Indorsement from the City Mayor forwarding Barangay*
504 *Ordinance No. 05, Series of 2024 of Barangay, Mabua, this City entitled, An Ordinance regulating*
505 *rental fees for beach cottages of Barangay Mabua Surigao City, during special occasion and holidays*
506 *and prescribing penalties for violation thereof.*

507
508 *We conducted a committee hearing for this purpose, Mr. Chairman and the purpose of this*
509 *Barangay Ordinance is very timely and favorable to all Surigaonons. However, there are technical*
510 *matters that they need to address and the...*

511
512 **HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:**

513
514 *Like public hearing?*

515
516 **HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:**

517
518 *Public hearing and to consult the City Legal Office as to the legality of their intent, Mr.*
519 *Chairman. So we agreed and the Committee on Rules advised them to consult the City Legal Office,*
520 *Mr. Chairman.*

521
522 *So, our recommendation is that this Barangay Ordinance be remanded back to the Barangay*
523 *Council of Barangay Mabua, so that they will have a sufficient time to refer the matter to the City*
524 *Legal Office.*

525
526 *May I therefore move for the adoption of our committee report, Mr. Chairman.*

527
528 The motion to adopt the committee report was approved. Thereafter, a motion was
529 presented and approved, to wit:

175

530
531
532
533 **RESOLUTION NO. 175 – 2024**

534
535 **A RESOLUTION REMANDING BARANGAY ORDINANCE NO. 05, SERIES OF**
536 **2024 ENTITLED "AN ORDINANCE REGULATING RENTAL FEES FOR BEACH**
537 **COTTAGES TO BARANGAY MABUA, SURIGAO CITY, DURING SPECIAL OCCASIONS**
538 **AND HOLIDAYS AND PRESCRIBING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION THEREOF" TO THE**
539 **BARANGAY COUNCIL OF BARANGAY MABUA AND/OR THE CITY LEGAL OFFICE**
540 **FOR REFINEMENT.**

541
542 **WHEREAS**, the Sangguniang Panglungsod was in receipt of an indorsement from the City
543 Mayor, forwarding the Ordinance No. 05, Series of 2024 of Barangay Mabua, this city, entitled, "An
544 Ordinance Regulating Rental Fees for Beach Cottages to Barangay Mabua, Surigao City, During
545 Special Occasion and Holidays and Prescribing Penalties for Violation Thereof.", for appropriate
546 action and approval;

547
548 **WHEREAS**, during the Committee Hearing held on July 24, 2024, the Barangay
549 Officials of Barangay Mabua manifested to withdraw the said barangay ordinance to give
550 them time to consult and refer the same to the City Legal Office for refinement;

551
552 **NOW THEREFORE**, on motion of Honorable Cacel R. Azarcon, seconded by Honorable
553 Joseph Joey S. Yuipco, it was unanimously;

554
555 **RESOLVED:** To pass a resolution remanding Barangay Ordinance No. 05, Series of 2024
556 entitled "An Ordinance Regulating Rental Fees for Beach Cottages to Barangay Mabua, Surigao

City, during special occasions and holidays and prescribing penalties for violation thereof" to the Barangay Council of Barangay Mabua and/or the City Legal Office for refinement.

RESOLVED FURTHER: That copies of this resolution be furnished the Honorable City Mayor, City Legal Office, and the Barangay Council of Barangay Mabua, for their information.

Honorable Azarcon continued.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON

Second to the last, Mr. Chairman.

COMMITTEE REPORT

SUBJECT:

Indorsement from the City Mayor forwarding Barangay Ordinance No. 001 Series of 2024 of Barangay Libuac, this City, entitled, An Ordinance Imposing Taxes Fees and Charges Pursuant to the Provision of the Local Government Code or RA7160 and Providing Penalty for Violation Thereof.

FINDINGS/ACTION TAKEN:

During the Committee hearing held on July 24, 2024, the Barangay officials of Barangay Libuac manifested to withdraw the said Barangay Ordinance to give them time to consult and refer the same to the City Legal Office for refinement.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Committee on Rules hereby recommends that the said Barangay Ordinance be remanded back to the Barangay Council of Barangay, Libuac and or to the City Legal Office.

May I therefore move or the adoption of our committee report, Mr. Chairman.

The motion to adopt the committee report was approved. Thereafter, a motion was presented and approved, to wit:

RESOLUTION NO. 176 – 2024

A RESOLUTION REMANDING BARANGAY ORDINANCE NO. 001, SERIES OF 2024, ENTITLED "AN ORDINANCE IMPOSING TAXES, FEES AND CHARGES PURSUANT TO THE PROVISION OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE (RA 7160) AND PROVIDING PENALTY FOR VIOLATION THEREOF" TO THE BARANGAY COUNCIL OF BARANGAY LIBUAC AND/OR THE CITY LEGAL OFFICE FOR REFINEMENT.

WHEREAS, the Sangguniang Panlungsod was in receipt of Barangay Ordinance No. 001 Series of 2024 of Barangay Libuac, this city, entitled, An Ordinance Imposing Taxes, Fees and Charges Pursuant to the Provision of the Local Government Code (RA 7160) and Providing Penalty for Violation Thereof, for review and approval;

WHEREAS, during the Committee Hearing held on July 24, 2024, the Barangay Officials of Barangay Libuac manifested to withdraw the said Barangay Ordinance to give them time to consult and refer the same to the City Legal Office for refinement;

NOW THEREFORE, on motion of Honorable Cacer R. Azarcon, seconded by Honorable Karl Duane A. Casurra, it was unanimously;

RESOLVED: To pass a resolution remanding Barangay Ordinance No. 001, Series of 2024, entitled "An Ordinance Imposing Taxes, Fees and Charges pursuant to the provision of the Local Government Code (RA 7160) and providing penalty for violation thereof" to the Barangay Council of Barangay Libuac and/or the City Legal Office for refinement.

RESOLVED FURTHER: That copies of this resolution be furnished the Honorable City Mayor, City Legal Office, and the Barangay Council of Barangay Libuac, for their information.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

My take, before that. My take on this, can we just have a checklist of the requirements before the City Legal Office would refer this to the city, Sanggunian or at our office so that ah for example, the need for, is there, has there been a public hearing or has there been a consultation or anything that would, so that this will not be reverted or be remanded back.

So may we request the City Legal Office to make a checklist of all the requirements that are really needed before that the same be forwarded to the city, the SP, the Sangguniang Panlungsod for the review.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Especialy Ordinances imposing fees and charges, Mr. Chairman.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Yes.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Because apparently the most of the Ordinances coming from the Barangay are imposing taxes and fees and there are penalties involved. There is really a need to conduct a committee hearing and consultation and because there are legal matters that they do not know and there is a need for them to be guided by a lawyer.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

And also the maximum amount that they can imposed as a penalty. There is a maximum amount that they can impose a penalty and moreover the really the need for a public hearing is very very important. We'll just try to discuss this with Councilor or the President of the Liga ng mga Barangay. If there is a time that you can have a, what? meeting with the City Legal Office for you to be guided on how you will be drafting an Ordinance so that this will not be just like a volleyball. After here we will remand, and then you know the power of the Sangguniang Panlungsod is merely to determine whether or not the said Ordinance is on conformity with the powers of the local government unit like the Barangay to pass the said Ordinance.

But in here in our case we are really trying to help them and making sure that when they pass the said Ordinance, it is in accordance with the prescribed rules for a valid Ordinance.

Otherwise, they may face the legal consequences of having an Ordinance that is not in accordance with the rules and regulations.

Honorable Azarcon continued.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Yes, the last but not the least, Mr. Chairman is the Indorsement from the City Mayor forwarding Barangay Ordinances of Barangay Silop the same situation Mr. Chairman. There are nine Ordinances coming from Barangay Silop, Barangay Ordinances, most of them are imposition of fees, charges, taxes, so on and so forth...

1. Ordinance No. 001, s. 2023 - Enacting Barangay Tax Ordinance No.002, Imposing Taxes on Business Establishments, Barangay Certification and Clearances, Documentary Stamp and Other Fees and Charges;
2. Ordinance No. 01, s. 2024 – An Ordinance for the Imposition of Curfew Hours to Minor, Adults and Business Closing Time of Videocinco and Internet Café Operators within the Jurisdiction Territory of Barangay Silop, Surigao City;
3. Ordinance No. 02, s. 2024 – An Ordinance Imposing Fees and Charges, Taxes Set by the Local Government of Barangay Silop, Surigao City;
4. Ordinance No. 03, s. 2024 - An Ordinance Imposing Rental of Multipurpose Building and Other Facilities of Barangay Silop, Surigao City;
5. Ordinance No. 04, s. 2024 - An Ordinance for the Imposition of Illegal Making, Improvisation, and Position of Marble Bullet Gun to all Minors and Adults within the Jurisdiction Territory of Barangay Silop, Surigao City;
6. Ordinance No. 05, s. 2024 - An Ordinance Prohibiting Improper of Waste Product and other Form of Garbage within the Territorial Jurisdiction of Barangay Silop, Surigao City;
7. Ordinance No. 06, s. 2024 - An Ordinance Implementing the Anti- Noise Ordinance in the Barangay;
8. Ordinance No. 07, s. 2024 - An Ordinance Implementing the Rules for Failure to Attend Purok Meeting, Invitation/ Summons from the Office of the Punong Barangay Tagbo in Every Purok in this Barangay;
9. Ordinance No. 08, s. 2024 - An Ordinance Prohibiting the Presence of Astray Animals in the Public Place of Barangay. Silop, Surigao City;

The committee hereby recommends for that; the aforesaid Ordinances Barangay Ordinances be remanded back to the Barangay Council of Barangay Silop, Surigao City.

The motion to adopt the committee report was approved. Thereafter, a motion was presented and approved, to wit:

RESOLUTION NO. 177 – 2024

A RESOLUTION REMANDING THE BARANGAY ORDINANCES TO THE BARANGAY COUNCIL OF BARANGAY SILOP AND/OR THE CITY LEGAL OFFICE FOR FURTHER REFINEMENT.

WHEREAS, the Sangguniang Panlungsod was in receipt **of an** indorsement from the City Mayor, forwarding the Barangay Ordinances of Barangay Silop, to wit:

1. *Ordinance No.001, s. 2023 - Enacting Barangay Tax Ordinance No.002, Imposing Taxes on Business Establishments, Barangay Certification and Clearances, Documentary Stamp and Other Fees and Charges;*
2. *Ordinance No. 01, s. 2024 - An Ordinance for the Imposition of Curfew Hours to Minors, Adults, and Business Closing Time of Videocinco and Internet Cafe Operators within the Jurisdiction Territory of Barangay Silop, Surigao City;*
3. *Ordinance No. 02, s. 2024 - An Ordinance Imposing Fees and Charges, Taxes Set by the Local Government of Barangay Silop, Surigao City;*
4. *Ordinance No. 03, s. 2024 - An Ordinance Imposing Rental of Multipurpose Building and Other Facilities of Barangay Silop, Surigao City;*
5. *Ordinance No. 04, s. 2024 - An Ordinance for the Imposition of Illegal Making, Improvision, and Position of Marble Bullet Gun to all Minors and Adults within the Jurisdiction Territory of Barangay Silop, Surigao City;*
6. *Ordinance No.05, s. 2024 - An Ordinance Prohibiting Improper of Waste Product and other Form of Garbage within the Territorial Jurisdiction of Barangay Silop, Surigao City;*
7. *Ordinance No. 06, s. 2024 - An Ordinance Implementing the Anti-Noise Ordinance in the Barangay;*
8. *Ordinance No.07, s. 2024 - An Ordinance Implementing the Rules for Failure to Attend Purok Meeting, Invitation/Summons from the Office of the Punong Barangay, Tagbo in Every Purok in this Barangay;*
9. *Ordinance No. 08, s. 2024 - An Ordinance Prohibiting the Presence of Astray Animals in the Public Place of Barangay Silop, Surigao City, for review and approval.*

WHEREAS, during the Committee Hearing held on July 24, 2024, the Barangay Officials of Barangay Silop manifested to withdraw the said Barangay Ordinances to give them time to consult and refer the same to the City Legal Office for refinement, as it appears that the aforesaid barangay ordinances are amendatory ordinances of the already existing ordinances of the said barangay;

NOW THEREFORE, on motion of Honorable Cacer R. Azarcon, seconded by Honorable Jose Expeditus B. Bayana, it was unanimously;

RESOLVED: To pass a resolution remanding the Barangay Ordinances to the Barangay Council of Barangay Silop and/or the City Legal Office for further refinement.

RESOLVED FURTHER: That copies of this resolution be furnished the Honorable City Mayor, City Legal Office, and the Barangay Council of Barangay Silop, for their information.

Honorable Bayana was recognized.

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

The committee report will be delivered by the Committee on Urban Development and Land Use.

Subject of the Committee Report. Request from the Office of the City Mayor for the approval of the Preliminary Subdivision and Development Plan of a Parcel of Land Owned by the City Government and Covered by Transfer Certificate of Title No. 162-2017000994 With an Area of 140,241 Square Meters.

First before anything else, the said parcel of land has already been reclassified from being part of the agricultural zone to residential zone by virtue of city Ordinance No. 484 Series of 2023. During the committee hearing and upon further verification it was found out that the requirements for the preliminary development and preliminary subdivision and development plan of said parcel of land has been... the requirements therefore has been fully complied.

So, it is therefore recommended by the Committee on Urban Development and Land Use that the same be approve by the August body.

May I move for the adoption of the committee report Mr. Chairman.

The motion to adopt the committee report was approved. Thereafter, a motion was presented and approved, to wit:

178

RESOLUTION NO. 178 – 2024

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN OF THE CITY RESETTLEMENT SITE FOR A PARCEL OF LAND COVERED BY TCT NO. 162-2017000994 WITH AN AREA OF 140,241 SQUARE METERS.

WHEREAS, the Sangguniang Panlungsod was in receipt of an indorsement from the City Mayor, requesting the approval of the Preliminary Subdivision and Development Plan for a parcel of land owned by the City Government and covered by Transfer Certificate of Title No. 162-2017000994, with an area of 140,241 square meters;

WHEREAS, a parcel of land with an area of 140,241 square meters, covered by Transfer Certificate of Title No. 162-2017000994, and owned by the City Government, is proposed as a resettlement site;

WHEREAS, the preliminary subdivision plan has been submitted for the approval of the august body;

WHEREAS, during committee hearing and verification, it was found that the request for the approval of the preliminary subdivision plan is compliant with the corresponding laws and rules;

NOW THEREFORE, on motion of Honorable Cacer R. Azarcon, seconded by Honorable Joseph Joey S. Yuipco, it was unanimously;

RESOLVED: To pass a resolution approving the Preliminary Subdivision and Development Plan of the City Resettlement Site for a Parcel of Land Covered by TCT No. 162-2017000994 with an area of 140,241 Square Meters.

RESOLVED FURTHER: That copies of this resolution be furnished the Honorable City Mayor, and City Planning and Development Office, for their information.

1. CALENDAR OF BUSINESS

A. Pending Matters:

None

B. Urgent Matters:

None

C. Business of the Day
2nd Reading

- Proposed ordinance, "An Ordinance Mandating Businesses Operating Within the Territorial Jurisdiction of Surigao City to Secure a Philippine National Police (PNP) Certificate of Distributorship Before Manufacturing, Selling, Using, or Distributing PNP Uniforms, Insignias, and Other Accouterments and Prescribing Penalties for Violations Thereof, And For Other purposes. (By: Committee on Public Order and Safety / Committee on Trade, Business, Industry and Economic Enterprise)

Honorable Abian was recognized.

HON. BALTAZAR C. ABIAN:

Okay, again Mr. Chair good afternoon and to my colleagues. Mr. Chair we have just finished our second committee hearing, in that hearing we identify the issues that require review, gathering and information with regards, "An Ordinance Mandating Business Operating Within the Territorial Jurisdiction of Surigao City to Secure a Philippine National Police (PNP) Certificate of Distributorship Before Manufacturing, Selling, Using, or Distributing PNP Uniforms, Insignias, and Other Accouterments and Prescribing Penalties for Violations Thereof.

*Mr. Chair, I move for the **SUSPENSION OF THE RULES** to give way to our resource persons. Our new Chief Police PLTCOL Atty. Mariano C. Lukban, our City Legal Atty. Lex Joshua Andrew U. Silvosa, and our Business Permit Licensing Officer Atty. Dahlia Claudine May B. Perral-De La Rosa.*

ATTY. LEX JOSHUA ANDREW U. SILVOSA/ CITY LEGAL OFFICER:

Good afternoon Mr. Chairman, and good afternoon to this august body. As previously discussed there were concerns regarding the specifications on the penalty that would be implemented upon approval of this ordinance. So, as clarified during the committee hearing together with the Committee on Business, it is clarified that for the purpose of this ordinance there will be a

30 days period to clarify whether or not there is compliance or non-compliance from the establishment of the said clearances from our PNP. And as you can see, it specifically mentioned what are the penalties. Mr. Chairman as for the penalties, any violator of the aforementioned provision shall be imposed a penalty of a fine of Five Thousand Pesos (P5,000.00), and imprisonment for 10 to 30 days upon discretion of the court where the case is pending. So this is clarified, Mr. Chairman.

Further discussion dwells on what constitute a violation, fines and correction on the Sections 2 and 4 of the proposed ordinance by Honorable Catre, Jr. Honorable Aldonza also suggested to specify on the proposed ordinance which PNP Office issues the required certificate. The Presiding Officer then suggested that the discussion for the matter be completed and calendar the same on the next regular session for the amendments.

There being no more clarifications, the resource persons were excused and **RULES ARE REINSTATED.**

- Proposed Ordinance, Adopting / Approving the Revised Schedule of Fees and Charges for Laboratory Testing of Construction Materials as Prescribed by Department Order No. 188, series of 2022 of the Department of Public Works and Highways. (By: Committee on Ways and Means / Committee on Public Works and Infrastructure)

Honorable Karl Duane A. Casurra was recognized.

HON. KARL DUANE A. CASURRA:

Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good afternoon to my fellow colleagues and member of the council. Uh, last regular session on this matter was laid on the table due to the following considerations. The title, the inclusion of the fees or matrix or table in the Section of the ordinance and the revenue sharing of the collected fees to the coffers of the City Government of Surigao City and the City Engineering Office Quality Assurance Section. Hence, um, we have here the resource persons for further clarifications/discussion. And we also have the updated draft of the ordinance, Mr. Chair, may I move for the suspension of the rules to give way for the resource persons.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

RULES ARE SUSPENDED.

HON. KARL DUANE A. CASURRA:

May we call, Atty. Lex Joshua Andrew Silvosa, the City Legal Officer, Atty. Jeffrey P. Galido, the City Budget Officer. Um, Engr. Genevieve B. Pontivedra. Uh, acting City Engineer, Engr. Elyanna Kiara C. Tecson, Engineer III and Engr. Ryan Anthony P. Tecson, Engineer IV, as our resource persons.

Hon. Karl Duane A. Casurra provided a summary, noting the ordinance title and sections on material fees and revenue sharing. Councilor Jose Expeditus B. Bayana raised concerns about the clarity of the ordinance's provisions and suggested amendments, including simplifying the ordinance title and clarifying the revenue distribution.

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

Section one, are there documents to be issued or an ordinance fixing the fees and charges for the laboratory testing of construction materials and documents? You are going to test documents?

HON. BALTAZAR C. ABIAN:

Ay oo hu...

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

Waya na, di ba? And then I think, Mr. Chairman, the issuance of the DPWH, Department Order No. 188, series of 2022. Although this ordinance is based there on, should, can already be removed, Mr. Chairman? So, may I suggest that title one would, uh, section one, title would read as follows, "An ordinance fixing the fees and charges for laboratory testing of construction materials" Period. Then, section three. It needs to be clarified. I mean, the way the provision is being constructed, there is something wrong. Maybe can read as follows, Revenues, um, earned under this ordinance shall be shared as follows..

80% to the General Fund and 20% to a Trust Fund under the City Engineering Office, which will be used for the, ono man ini? Maintenance and operation of the laboratory, Instruments and equipment?

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

What? What else would you want, uh, to add here? Uh, resource persons. Okay na ini? Uh, can, can we be brief, uh, Engr. Pontivedra as to what is this, uh, Is this a, um, for the contractors or what? I mean, uh, why do we have, uh, to test? And, uh, is there really a need, uh, for, uh, the said, uh, document? Uh, for what? I mean, uh, kindly brief us on this.

Engr. Genevieve B. Pontivedra, Acting City Engineer, emphasized the necessity of testing construction materials to ensure project quality. She explained that the LGU's own testing laboratory would attract local contractors and generate revenue. The testing services would not be exclusive to Surigao City projects but also available to other regions, with results accredited by the DPWH.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Is there any other question? So, if none, then we will, uh, dispense with all our resource persons and go immediately to, uh, the period of amendment. Thank you so much.

*Atty. Silvosa, Atty. Galido, Engr. Pontivedra, Engr. Tecson, duha ka Tecson, Elyanna and Ryan. **RULES ARE REINSTATED.** Okay, we'll now go to the period of amendment. What is there to be amended again, Councilor Bayana?*

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

Yes, Sir. May I move for the following amendments, Mr. Chairman? Section one. Uh, to read as follows, "The ordinance shall be known as an ordinance fixing the fees and charges for laboratory testing of construction materials" Period. The rest should be deleted.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

What's the next amendment?

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

Section three. To read as follows. "revenues earned under this ordinance shall be divided as follows: 80% will go to the general fund, and 20% in a trust fund under the City Engineering Office which will be utilized for the maintenance and operation of the laboratory instruments and equipment"

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

1001
1002
1003
1004
1005
1006
1007
1008
1009
1010
1011
1012
1013
1014
1015
1016
1017
1018
1019
1020
1021
1022
1023
1024
1025
1026
1027
1028
1029
1030
1031
1032
1033
1034
1035
1036
1037
1038
1039
1040
1041
1042
1043
1044
1045
1046
1047

Any other amendment?

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

That would be all, Mr. Chairman. May I move for the approval of the amendment, Mr. Chairman?

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Is there any second?

HON. KARL DUANE A. CASURRA:

Second.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Seconded that the, uh, amendment is carried. Any other amendment? Uh, there being none. We now end the period of discussion. Uh, the, uh, Chair, uh, Councilor Casurra is now recognized for this to be approved under Second Reading.

A motion was presented by the proponent to approve the matter on second reading with the amendments which was favorably seconded and approved. The proponent then moved for the **SUSPENSION OF THE RULES** to approved the same in third and final reading.

On motion of Honorable Karl Duane A. Casurra, seconded Honorable Baltazar C. Abian, it was unanimously

RESOLVED: That the following Ordinance, be as it is hereby enacted, to wit:

ORDINANCE NO. 518
Series of 2024

AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE FEES AND CHARGES FOR LABORATORY TESTING OF CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS.

Be it ordained by the Sangguniang Panglungsod of Surigao City in session assembled that:

SECTION 1. TITLE - This Ordinance shall be known as " AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE FEES AND CHARGES FOR LABORATORY TESTING OF CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS.";

SECTION 2. FEES FOR MATERIAL TEST. - The fees and charges for material tests, services, and documents issued by the City Engineering Office, Quality Assurance Section are hereby fixed as follows:

SOIL AGGREGATES	PRICE
GRADING	P335.00
LIQUID LIMIT	P280.00
PLASTIC LIMIT	P200.00
ABRASION LOSS	P685.00
CBR	P1910.00

COMPACTION	P1065.00
FINE AGGREGATES	PRICE
GRADING	P335.00
MATERIALS FINER THAN THE NO.200 SIEVE	P280.00
BULK SPECIFIC GRAVITY	P230.00
ABSORPTION	P200.00
ORGANIC IMPURITIES	P400.00
UNIT WEIGHT	P250.00
COARSE AGGREGATES	PRICE
GRADING	P335.00
BULK SPECIFIC GRAVITY	P230.00
ABSORPTION	P200.00
ABRASION	P685.00
UNIT WEIGHT	P250.00
BOULDERS	PRICE
ABRASION	P685.00
SPECIFIC GRAVITY AND ABSORPTION	P335.00
FIELD DENSITY TEST	PRICE
FIELD DENSITY TEST	P555.00

1048
1049
1050
1051
1052
1053
1054
1055
1056
1057
1058
1059
1060
1061
1062
1063
1064
1065
1066
1067
1068
1069
1070
1071
1072
1073
1074
1075
1076
1077
1078
1079

SECTION 3. REVENUE SHARING – Revenues earned under this ordinance shall be divided as follows:

- 80% to the general funds of the Local Government Unit of Surigao City; and
- 20% in a trust fund under the City Engineering Office, which will be utilized for the maintenance and operation of the laboratory instruments and equipment.

SECTION 4. REPEALING CLAUSE - All ordinances, executive orders, rules and regulations or parts thereof that are inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed or modified accordingly;

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVITY CLAUSE - This ordinance shall take effect fifteen (15) days after its publication in at least two (2) local newspapers of general circulation within Surigao City.

Enacted on July 25, 2024

SPONSORED BY: HON. KARL DUANE A. CASURRA
Chairman, Committee on Public Works and Infrastructure

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA
Chairman, Committee on Ways and Means

RULES ARE REINSTATED.

- Proposed ordinance, "An Ordinance Mandating Businesses Operating Within the Territorial Jurisdiction of Surigao City to Secure a Philippine National Police (PNP) Certificate of Distributorship Before Manufacturing, Selling, Using, or Distributing PNP Uniforms, Insignias, and Other Accouterments

1080 and Prescribing Penalties for Violations Thereof, And For Other
1081 purposes.
1082

1083 Honorable Abian was recognized.
1084

1085 **HON. BALTAZAR C. ABIAN:**
1086

1087 *Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Chair. Good afternoon to my colleagues. Uh, Committee*
1088 *Report. Uh...*
1089

1090 **HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:**
1091

1092 *Committee report.*
1093

1094 **HON. BALTAZAR C. ABIAN:**
1095

1096 *Committee Report. Considering that we have taken the proposed ordinance in hearing...*
1097

1098 *Hearing as a whole last... hearing last July 22 and 23, 2024 I therefore move that I be allowed*
1099 *to read committee report and that be the same be considered part of my discussion under Second*
1100 *Reading...*
1101

1102 **HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:**
1103

1104 *What is that? What is that motion? That... You be allowed to...*
1105

1106 **HON. BALTAZAR C. ABIAN:**
1107

1108 *Allowed to read my committee report.*
1109

1110 **HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:**
1111

1112 *Is there any second to that motion that we allow him to read the committee report. Is there*
1113 *any second?*
1114

1115 **HON. JENELYN EDULZURA:**
1116

1117 *Second.*
1118

1119 **HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:**
1120

1121 *Seconded, is there any objection? Hearing none. The motion is approved. You can now read*
1122 *your committee report.*
1123

1124 **HON. BALTAZAR C. ABIAN:**
1125

1126 *Okay, thank you, Mr. Chair.*
1127

1128 *Subject: The proposed ordinance on the borrowing of the Local Government Unit (LGU) of*
1129 *the Surigao City in the total amount of Three Hundred Seventy-Five Million Pesos (₱375,000,000.00)*
1130 *to finance the construction of the Swine Breeder Farm Facilities at Barangay Quezon, Surigao City*
1131 *for Lease to Charoen Pokphand (CP) Foods Philippines, and a lot acquisition for the construction of*
1132 *the said breeder farm, and an ordinance ratifying the said breeder farm.*
1133

1134 *Mr. Chair, we have our facts and findings. First, the capacity of the LGU to secure loan*
1135 *amount. It was supported by the Certification issued by the Bureau of Local Government Finance*
1136 *(BLGF) that the net borrowing capacity of the City is ₱1.4 Billion. Thus, even if the City has an*

1137 *outstanding loan amortization for the loan of heavy equipment and the construction of the City Hall*
 1138 *Annex, the City is still more than qualified to secure ₱375 Million loan with Development Bank of the*
 1139 *Philippines (DBP).*

1140
 1141 *Second, the capacity to pay the loan. The construction of the swine breeder farm being a*
 1142 *government enterprise project of the City, will in itself generate income derived from the proceeds of*
 1143 *the rent agreement with the CP Foods Philippines for the 15 years which is more sufficient to pay*
 1144 *the loan of 12 years. The Swine Breeder Project is thus, is a self-liquidating venture. The City pays*
 1145 *the loan from the income derived from the rent agreement between the City and CP Food Philippines.*

1146
 1147 *Third, whether there is need to a Swiss Challenge. The City Legal Officer clarified that this*
 1148 *is neither a solicited or unsolicited proposal from the CP Foods Philippines. It has decided to*
 1149 *undertake this government enterprise project upon being invited to join the National Government's*
 1150 *Special Program for Swine Breeding under the Department of Agriculture and under the Food*
 1151 *Security Program of the National Government. This was clarified also by the Development Bak of*
 1152 *the Philippines (DBP) Representatives that is was the one who presented this special program to the*
 1153 *Local Government Unit (LGU) being an eligible borrower after it has entered into a Memorandum of*
 1154 *Agreement with CP Foods Philippines as their partner in the implementation of the Special Program*
 1155 *for Swine Breeder Farm in the Philippines. In fact, the loan under consideration is clearly that it has*
 1156 *to secure the amount indicated for the purpose of constructing the Swine Breeder Farm after the*
 1157 *Local Government Unit (LGU) had successfully entered into a Lease Agreement with CP Foods*
 1158 *Philippines, the latter being the Lessee and the one who will operate the breeder farm for 15 years*
 1159 *and subject to renewal for the same period upon its expiration.*

1160
 1161 *Fourth, on the issue of negative covenants stated in the Term Loan Agreement.*
 1162 *Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP) defended that this is a pro-forma provision being*
 1163 *embodied always in Term Loan Agreement by banks be it government or private banks. In fact, this*
 1164 *provision is also embodied in all the other government or private banks. In fact, this provision is also*
 1165 *embodied in all the other Term Loan Agreement that the Local Government Unit (LGU) of Surigao*
 1166 *City has secured in the past including the two (2) subsisting loan agreements for the purchase of*
 1167 *heavy equipment and the Surigao City Hall Annex. Thus, the request for its deletion was not accepted*
 1168 *by Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP).*

1169
 1170 *That's all, Mr. Chair.*

1171
 1172 **HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:**

1173
 1174 *Your recommendation.*

1175
 1176 **HON. BALTAZAR C. ABIAN:**

1177
 1178 *Since, there is no discussion, Mr. Chair? On the matter...I therefore move, Mr. Chair, that*
 1179 *the said ordinance be approve under Second Reading.*

1180
 1181 **HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:**

1182
 1183 *Is there any second to the motion that the committee report...yes, duha...ratifying. Is there*
 1184 *any second to the motion to approve the committee report. Second? Any second?*

1185
 1186 **HON. JENELYN EDULZURA:**

1187
 1188 *Second.*

1189
 1190 **HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:**

1191
 1192 *Duly-seconded. The motion to approve the committee report as presented is hereby*
 1193 *approved. What is now the pleasure of Councilor Abian?*

HON. BALTAZAR C. ABIAN:

Mr. Chair, I move for the suspension of the rules.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Why do we suspend?

HON. BALTAZAR C. ABIAN:

To ah...Mr. Chair, I'm sorry, Mr. Chair.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

We are now in the period of discussion. You said in your motion, you said that you be allowed to read the report. Now, you are trying to have, get that adopted, so it is now adopted. So, we are now in the period of discussion under Second Reading. Okay, so what is now the pleasure of the members of this Council, having this committee report already presented and under Second Reading, and being part of the discussion under the Second Reading. So, what is the pleasure now? Are there no more discussions? If there is none, then we'll go to your motion to approve this under Second Reading.

HON. BALTAZAR C. ABIAN:

Since there is no more discussion, Mr. Chair, on the matter, I therefore move for the proposed ordinance to be approved under Second Reading.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Is there any second to the motion?

HON. KARL DUANE A. CASURRA:

Second.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Is there any discussion? Objection? Hearing none, the....

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Mr. Chairman please, in the committee report of the Honorable Abian, the recommendation states, if I may read:

"Since there were no more issues raised, the Committee as a Whole, ended the two-days committee hearing with the stand of Councilor Cacer R. Azarcon having expressed his objection to the proposed ordinance. Thus, the matter will now be subjected to a vote this coming Regular Session on July 25, 2024, for the consideration of the Sangguniang Panlungsod (SP) members. That would be all, Mr. Chair. Thank you very much."

See? It is stated there.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

So, since there is now an objection, we will divide the House.

1250 Presiding Officer Alfonso S. Casurra called for a division of the House to vote on the
1251 ordinance. The votes were tallied as follows:

- 1252 • **In favor:** Seven (7) members (Councilors Aldonza, Abian, Catre, Casurra, Geli, Edulzura,
1253 and Ravelo).
1254 • **Against:** Four (4) members (Councilors Azarcon, Yuipco, Tinio, and Bayana).

1255 Considering the votes, the motion for second reading was approved. The proponent then
1256 moved for the **SUSPENSION OF THE RULES** to approved the same in third and final reading.

1257
1258 On motion of Honorable Baltazar C. Abian, seconded Honorable Karl Duane A. Casurra, it
1259 was unanimously

1260
1261 **RESOLVED:** That the following Ordinance, be as it is hereby enacted, to wit:

1262
1263 **ORDINANCE NO. 519**
1264 Series of 2024
1265

1266 **“AN ORDINANCE ON THE BORROWING OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT UNIT**
1267 **(LGU) OF SURIGAO CITY, SURIGAO DEL NORTE, IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF THREE**
1268 **HUNDRED SEVENTY-FIVE MILLION PESOS (PHP 375,000,000.00) TO FINANCE THE**
1269 **(A) THE CONSTRUCTION OF SWINE BREEDER FARM FACILITIES AT BRGY.**
1270 **QUEZON, SURIGAO CITY FOR LEASE TO CHAROEN POKPHAND FOODS**
1271 **PHILIPPINES CORPORATION; AND (B) LOT ACQUISITION FOR THE CONSTRUCTION**
1272 **OF SWINE BREEDER FARM FACILITIES AT BARANGAY. QUEZON, SURIGAO”**

1273
1274
1275 **SPONSOR: HON. BALTAZAR C. ABIAN**
1276 Chairman, Committee on Trade, Business and
1277 Government Enterprise
1278

1279 BE IT ENACTED, as it is hereby ENACTED, by the Sangguniang Panlungsod of the
1280 City of Surigao, Surigao del Norte, in session assembled that:

1281 SECTION 1. The City Mayor PABLO YVES L. DUMLAO II, in representation of the Local
1282 Government Unit of Surigao City, Surigao del Norte, is hereby authorized to enter into Loan
1283 Agreement with Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP) in accordance with Section 297 of
1284 Republic Act No. 7160 or the Local Government Code, in the amount up to THREE HUNDRED
1285 SEVENTY-FIVE MILLION PESOS (Php 375,000,000.00) under the terms and conditions herein set
1286 forth and such other terms and conditions as may be agreed upon with any person, corporation or
1287 entity for the purpose of funding priority project/s, and subject to the requirements under Section 123
1288 of Republic Act No. 7653 as implemented by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas Circular No. 402. In
1289 this connection, the City Mayor shall have full power authority to represent the borrowing and

1290
1291 in signing, executing and delivering such agreements, contracts, deeds, papers, and documents as
1292 may be necessary for the full and total implementation of the authority herein granted;

1293
1294 SECTION 2. The said priority project herein specified as the (a) construction of swine
1295 breeder farm facilities at Barangay. Quezon, Surigao City for lease to Charoen Pokphand Foods
1296 Philippines Corporation; and (b) lot acquisition for the construction of swine breeder farm facilities at
1297 Barangay. Quezon, Surigao are hereby certified to be a local infrastructure and/or other socio-
1298 economic development project in accordance with the approved local development plan and public
1299 investment program for the period Calendar year 2024;

1300

1301 SECTION 3. Consistent with the covering ordinance which includes contract, deeds and
1302 assignment, mortgage contracts, and such other agreements as may be entered into by the City in
1303 connection with the borrowing, the features, terms and conditions shall be as follows:
1304

Borrower	City of Surigao, Surigao del Norte
Amount	Php 375,000,000.00
Purpose	A. To finance the construction of Swine Breeder Farm Facilities at Barangay. Quezon, Surigao City for lease to Charoen Pokphand Foods Philippines Corporation. B. To finance the lot acquisition for the construction of Swine Breeder Farm Facilities at Barangay. Quezon, Surigao City.
Tenor	Twelve (12) years, inclusive of two (2) years grace period on principal. Payable in 120 equal monthly principal amortizations to commence at the end of the 25th month from initial drawdown.
Interest Rate	Fixed at 4.55% p.a. for three (3) years payable monthly to commence at the end of the 1st month from date of initial drawdown. Interest rate shall be reviewed after three (3) years and every 3 years thereafter based on prevailing market rate plus minimum credit spread based on the corresponding BRR. GRT for the account of the borrower.
Repayment Mode	Monthly
Fees	1. Front-end fee: waived 2. Commitment fee: waived 3. Default charge: 24% p.a. 4. Prepayment Penalty: waived, provided that prepayment is made on an interest payment date, otherwise, 3% based on amount prepaid. 5. Extension fee: waived
Required Documents	a. Brief Project Description b. Borrowing Ordinance c. Ratifying Ordinance d. SP Validated Ratifying Ordinance e. BLGF Certificate of Borrowing Capacity and Net Debt Service Ceiling f. MB Opinion from BSP
Other added Services	DBP to assist and facilitate the processing MB opinion and BLGF requirement

1305
1306 SECTION 4. The City hereby appropriates the entire proceeds of the borrowing exclusively
1307 to finance the above-mentioned projects and other financial obligations relative thereof.
1308

1309 SECTION 5. The City hereby grants its City Mayor authority to execute a letter waiving our
1310 rights to confidentiality of information by authorizing DBP, our trustee bank, and all banks or financial
1311 institutions with which we have transactions to disclose to the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and
1312 BLGF-DOF all information pertaining to the deposits, investments, loans, or other transactions
1313 including the history or status of our dealings with said banks or financial institutions and for the BSP
1314 and BLGF-DOF to make all inquiries as may be necessary regarding the same.
1315

1316 Furthermore, the BSP and BLGF-DOF are likewise authorized to disclose and share and
1317 such information furnished or obtained from said banks or financial institutions to the Department of
1318 Finance in relation to the performance by said Department of its functions.
1319

1320 SECTION 6. Any Ordinance, or parts thereof, inconsistent with the provisions of this
1321 ordinance is hereby repealed or amended accordingly.
1322

SECTION 7. The Ordinance shall take effect upon its publication and compliance with all the procedures required under Republic Act No. 7160 of an ordinance for its validity, including the affixation of signatures of the Local Chief Executive of LGU Surigao City, DBP Authorized Representative, in concurrence with the Sangguniang Panlungsod of Surigao City, Surigao del Norte, composing thereto at least a majority thereof, out of the total of 13 members, on all the pages of this Ordinance.

Enacted on July 25, 2024.

* This Ordinance was put to a vote by the Sangguniang Panlungsod Members present, with the following results, to wit:

VOTED IN FAVOR:

1. HON. JOENIL B. ALDONZA
2. HON. BALTAZAR C. ABIAN
3. HON. NOEL CHRISTIAN G. CATRE, JR.
4. HON. KARL DUANE A. CASURRA
5. HON. JOSHUA EMILIO S. GELI
6. HON. FLORENILLO B. RAVELO
7. HON. JENELYN EDULZURA

VOTED AGAINST:

1. HON. CACEL R. AZARCON
2. HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA
3. HON. JOEL E. TINIO
4. HON. JOSEPH JOEY S. YUIPCO

Having secured the required SEVEN (7) AFFIRMATIVE VOTES, which is the MAJORITY of ALL the 13 Sangguniang Panlungsod Members, the foregoing ORDINANCE is hereby APPROVED.

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

(Inaudible...)

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Duha. Duha na.

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

1373
1374
1375
1376
1377
1378
1379
1380
1381
1382
1383
1384
1385
1386
1387
1388
1389
1390
1391
1392
1393
1394
1395
1396
1397
1398
1399
1400
1401
1402
1403
1404
1405
1406
1407
1408

1409
1410
1411

1412
1413
1414
1415
1416
1417
1418
1419
1420
1421
1422
1423
1424
1425
1426
1427

Duha na? (Inaudible...)

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Isa ra man ka kuan...(inaudible...)

MS. EDNA B. SIEGA/ SP SECRETARY:

Ah okay.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Ratifying gani, human na...

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

Di, borrowing man bagan adto?

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Borrowing and ratifying. Utroha rakan Tang ang ratifying.

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

I-separate ra kan ang isa ka motion.

Hon. Cacerel R. Azarcon mentioned that objections were raised regarding the first ordinance, but the vote on the second ordinance had not yet been addressed. Presiding Officer Alfonso S. Casurra clarified that there were two ordinances contained in the indorsement of the City Mayor, borrowing and ratifying loan agreement.

Before the approval of the ratifying ordinance, Hon. Azarcon reiterated his objection. Presiding Officer Hon. Alfonso S. Casurra then called for a division of the House to vote on the ordinance. The votes were tallied as follows:

- **In favor:** Seven (7) members (Councilors Aldonza, Abian, Catre, Casurra, Geli, Edulzura, and Ravelo).
- **Against:** Four (4) members (Councilors Azarcon, Yuipco, Tinio, and Bayana).

A motion second reading was favorably seconded and approved with seven (7) votes in favor. The proponent then moved for the **SUSPENSION OF THE RULES** to approve the same in third and final reading.

On motion of Honorable Baltazar C. Abian, seconded Honorable Karl Duane A. Casurra, it was unanimously

RESOLVED: That the following Ordinance, be as it is hereby enacted, to wit:

ORDINANCE NO. 520
Series of 2024

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND RATIFYING THE LOAN AGREEMENTS, THE DEED OF ASSIGNMENT (WITH HOLD-OUT) OF NTA DEPOSIT, AND OTHER DOCUMENTS RELATED THERETO SIGNED AND EXECUTED BETWEEN THE LOCAL

1428 **GOVERNMENT UNIT OF SURIGAO CITY, SURIGAO DEL NORTE, AND THE**
1429 **DEVELOPMENT BANK OF THE PHILIPPINES (DBP) WITH ALL THE TERMS AND**
1430 **CONDITION THEREOF.**

1431

1432

1433 **SPONSOR: HON. BALTAZAR C. ABIAN**

1434 Chairman, Committee on Trade, Business and
1435 Government Enterprise

1436

1437

1438 **WHEREAS:** as duly authorized by the Sangguniang Panlungsod of Surigao, Surigao del
1439 Norte, the Honorable City Mayor of City of Surigao, Surigao del Norte has entered into various Loan
1440 Agreements with the DEVELOPMENT BANK OF THE PHILIPPINES (DBP) in aggregate principal
1441 amount of THREE HUNDRED SEVENTY-FIVE MILLION PESOS (Php375,000,000.00), consisting
1442 of:

1443

1444 P350,000,000.00 – To finance the construction of Swine Breeder Farm Facilities at
1445 Barangay. Quezon, Surigao City for lease to Charoen Pokphand Foods Philippines
1446 Corporation.

1447

1448 P25,000,000.00 – To finance the lot acquisition for the construction of Swine Breeder Farm
1449 Facilities at Barangay. Quezon, Surigao City.

1450

1451 Hereinafter referred to as the “DBP Loans”, to be used for the respective aforementioned
1452 purposes, and executed as security therefore, the Deed of Assignment of the National Tax Allotment
1453 (NTA) or a portion thereof, local taxes and other revenues of the City duly allocated for debt servicing.

1454

1455 **WHEREAS,** the aforesaid Loan Agreement, Deed of Assignment of NTA – Deposit with
1456 Hold-Out and other documents have been approved ready for their ratification;

1457

1458 WHEREAS, the terms and conditions contained in the above loan documents are fair, just,
1459 legal and in order.

1460

WHEREFORE

1461

1462 **RESOLVED AS IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED,** by the Sangguniang Panlungsod in the
1463 session duly assembled, to ratify, conform, approve and render effective and of full force and effect
1464 the Loans under the terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement and the covering collateral and
1465 other document/s executed in relation thereto.

1466

1467 **RESOLVED,** that the Sangguniang Panlungsod undertakes, as it hereby undertakes to
1468 appropriate in the City’s Annual Budget for the years 2024 to 2036 an amount sufficient to pay its
1469 loan from DBP including interest thereon and other charges. The estimated amount to be
1470 appropriated in the Schedule of Payments, hereto attached as Annex “A” which forms part of this
1471 resolution, shall be as follows:

1472

1473 CY 2024 – P 5,840,114.58	CY 2031 – P 46,712,020.05
1474 CY 2025 – P 17,472,473.96	CY 2032 – P 45,165,565.10
1475 CY 2026 – P 29,899,871.44	CY 2033 – P 43,326,725.26
1476 CY 2027 – P 53,588,239.15	CY 2034 – P 41,510,279.95
1477 CY 2028 – P 51,881,681.08	CY 2035 – P 39,693,834.64
1478 CY 2029 – P 50,093,744.36	CY 2036 – P 25,455,355.47
1479 CY 2030 – P 48,346,496.96	

1480

1481 **RESOLVED,** that this Ratification includes any and all subsequent requests by the LGU for
1482 modification/revision and/or amendment to be made on the project as well as on its approved terms
1483 and conditions, which makes the loan a statutory obligation of the LGU, including the following:

1484

- a. The LGU to execute the Loan Agreement, Promissory Notes, and other documents relating thereto, and specifically stating that the obligations of the LGU thereunder, as well as the terms and conditions thereof, shall be valid and binding on the LGU and shall not be subject to recall by the SP for the whole term of the loan, regardless of any change in its composition.
- b. The continuing assignment of the applicable portion of the LGU's NTA in favor of DBP until the loan is fully paid.
- c. DBP to automatically debit on due date from the LGU's CASA deposit account with DBP to an amount equivalent to the maturing loan amortization until the loan is fully paid.
- d. The inclusion of appropriation for debt-servicing in the LGU's annual budget in accordance with the Local Government Code until the loan is fully paid.

RESOLVED, that this ordinance be approved by the majority of all the Sangguniang Panlungsod Members, as shown here under, to wit:

Voted IN FAVOR:

Hon. Joenil B. Aldonza
Hon. Baltazar C. Abian
Hon. Noel Christian G. Catre, Jr.
Hon. Karl Duane A. Casurra
Hon. Joshua Emilio S. Geli
Hon. Florenillo B. Ravelo
Hon. Jenelyn Edulzura

Voted AGAINST:

Hon. Cacel R. Azarcon
Hon. Jose Expeditus B. Bayana
Hon. Joel E. Tinio
Hon. Joseph Joey S. Yuipco

Having secured the required **SEVEN (7) AFFIRMATIVE VOTES**, which is the **MAJORITY** of ALL the 13 Sangguniang Panlungsod Members, the foregoing **ORDINANCE** is hereby **APPROVED**.

RESOLVED FINALLY, that copies of this Ordinance be furnished the Office of the City Mayor, the City Treasurer's Office, the City Auditors Office and the DBP Surigao Lending Center.

Enacted on July 25, 2024

VOTED IN FAVOR:

1. HON. JOENIL B. ALDONZA 2. HON. BALTAZAR C. ABIAN

3. HON. NOEL CHRISTIAN G. CATRE, JR.

4. HON. KARL DUANE A. CASURRA 5. HON. JOSHUA EMILIO S. GELI

6. HON. FLORENILLO B. RAVELO 7. HON. JENELYN EDULZURA

1533
1534

1535

1536
1537
1538
1539
1540
1541
1542
1543
1544
1545
1546
1547
1548
1549
1550
1551
1552
1553
1554
1555
1556
1557
1558
1559
1560
1561
1562
1563
1564
1565
1566
1567
1568
1569
1570
1571
1572
1573
1574
1575
1576
1577
1578
1579
1580
1581
1582
1583
1584
1585
1586
1587

VOTED AGAINST:

1. HON. CACEL R. AZARCON
2. HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA
3. HON. JOEL E. TINIO
4. HON. JOSEPH JOEY S. YUIPCO

RULES ARE REINSTATED.

3rd and Final Reading

- An ordinance re-zoning a parcel of land and for other purposes. *(By Committee of Urban Development and Land Use)*

Honorable Jose Expeditus B. Bayana was recognized.

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

May I move for the approval of the proposed ordinance on Third and Final Reading, Mr. Chairman.

On motion of Honorable Jose Expeditus B. Bayana, seconded Honorable Joseph Joey S. Yuipco, it was unanimously

RESOLVED: That the following Ordinance, be as it is hereby enacted, to wit:

ORDINANCE NO. 521
Series of 2024

AN ORDINANCE REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 389, Series of 2016, the City Zoning Ordinance, classifies lands within the City’s territorial boundaries as to their allowable use;

WHEREAS, the City Government owns a parcel of land denominated as Lot No. 4277, Cad 234, containing an area of Thirteen Thousand Five Hundred Eighty-Seven (13,587) square meters, and covered by Transfer Certificate of Title No. 162-2023001082 which is located at Barangay Capalayan (formerly known as Arellano), Surigao City which is part of the Agricultural Zone as provided in Ordinance No. 389, series of 2016 (the “Parcel of Land”);

WHEREAS, the City Development Council (CDC) passed Resolution No. 03, series of 2024 endorsing the rezoning of the Parcel of Land from Agricultural Zone to Residential Zone;

WHEREAS, the Sangguniang Barangay of Barangay Capalayan, Surigao City (“Capalayan”) enacted Resolution No. 01, series of 2024 supporting the rezoning of the Parcel of Land;

WHEREAS, there is a need to rezone the Parcel of land to a Residential Zone so as to facilitate the relocation thereto of underprivileged residents of Capalayan as well as those living in areas therein which are considered as highly susceptible to landslides;

WHEREAS, the City Government of Surigao has the authority to reclassify or rezone agricultural lands based on the provisions of Section 20, Republic Act No. 7160, the Local Government Code of 1991, as amended.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, as it is hereby ordained by the Sangguniang Panlungsod of the City of Surigao, in a session duly assembled that:

SECTION 1. REZONING OF LAND. Lot No. 4277, Cad 234, containing an area of Thirteen Thousand Five Hundred Eighty-Seven (13,587) square meters, and covered by Transfer Certificate of Title No. 162- 2023001082 which is located at Barangay Capalayan (formerly known as Arellano), Surigao City is hereby rezoned to be part of the Residential Zone.

SECTION 2. LIMITATIONS ON THE UTILIZATION OF THE REZONED LAND. After the rezoning of the Parcel of Land, it shall be subject to the limitations stated in Ordinance No. 389, series of 2016, and all other applicable ordinances.

SECTION 3. AMENDATORY CLAUSE. Ordinance No 389, Series of 2016 is hereby accordingly amended and modified insofar as the rezoning of the Parcel of Land is concerned. All other ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are likewise deemed modified.

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVITY. - This Ordinance shall take effect immediately after its approval.

Enacted on July 25, 2024.

SPONSORED BY: HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA
Chairman, Committee on Urban Development and Land Use

PRIVILEGE HOUR/SPEECH

None

OTHER MATTERS

None

ADJOURNMENT

There being no other matters discussed, the 29TH Regular Session was adjourned at 3:52 o'clock in the afternoon of July 25, 2024.

(As to what transpired in the discussion, the transcribed stenographic notes of the same are kept and filed in the SP Office for record purposes and reference.)

CLOSING PRAYER:

HON. JOSEPH JOEY S. YUIPCO:

In the name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy Spirit. Amen.
Lord God,
As we conclude this council meeting,
we are grateful for the time we've shared and the decisions we've made together.
May Your wisdom continue to guide us in our actions.

Grant us the strength to implement the resolutions reached today
With fairness and compassion.
Bless each member of this council with unity of purpose and clarity of mind
As we strive to serve our community.

May our efforts be fruitful and beneficial to all
Whom we represent.
We ask for your protection and guidance as we depart from this gathering.
Amen.

In the name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy Spirit. Amen.

APPROVED, this 31ST day of July 2024.

WE HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing statements, resolutions and the like were passed and approved by us, members of the Sangguniang Panlungsod of the City of Surigao, Province of Surigao del Norte.

EDNA B. SIEGA
Sanggunian Secretary

CACEL R. AZARCON
City Councilor

JOENIL B. ALDONZA
City Councilor

JOEL E. TINIO
City Councilor

JOSHUA EMILIO S. GELI
City Councilor

BALTAZAR C. ABIAN
City Councilor

NOEL CHRISTIAN G. CATRE, JR.
City Councilor

JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA
City Councilor

JOSEPH JOEY S. YUIPCO
City Councilor

KARL DUANE A. CASURRA
City Councilor

FLORENILLO B. RAVELO
Liga ng mga Barangay President

JENELYN EDULZURA
SK Federation President

1681
1682
1683
1684
1685
1686
1687
1688
1689
1690
1691
1692
1693
1694
1695
1696
1697
1698

ATTESTED BY:

ALFONSO S. CASURRA
Vice Mayor
Presiding Officer

.